Questions & Answers
Emerging Energy Efficient Technology Demonstrations (EEETD)
GFO-16-304



Contents
General	2
Project Eligibility	2
Match Funding	6
Definitions, Terms and Conditions and Other Programs	7
Funding	8



	[bookmark: _Toc460244203]General

	Q.1
	Will the presentation be posted on the website?

	A.1
	You can find the presentation slides from the August 11 and August 17  workshops on our website at: http://www.energy.ca.gov/contracts/epic.html#GFO-16-304 

	Q.2
	Are the groups and list of technologies indicated in Section II.B.2 listed in priority order?

	A.2
	No.

	Q.3
	On the submission process, do we still need to submit a hard copy if we just do the electronic process?

	A.3
	No, we require only one submission. You may either submit via the Energy Commission Grant Solicitation System (GSS) or submit a hard copy with an electronic copy (USB or CD-ROM).  Please see the solicitation manual Sections III.A. to III.C.

	Q.4
	For the file formats, can they be either .doc or .docx?

	A.4
	Yes, both Word file formats are acceptable.

	Q.5
	Is there a typo in section III.D.4?  Only two groups are mentioned and there is a reference to group specific questions.  We are not sure what this means.

	A.5
	Yes, there is a typo. It should read: “This form will include the majority of the applicant’s responses to the Scoring Criteria in Part IV, including the following which must be addressed for all groups”. Also, Group Specific Questions referenced in Section III.D.4.a. is not optional and all applicants must respond to the specific items in Section II.B.3 in Attachment 4. We will address these changes in a future addendum.  

	Q.6
	Are organizations with large cash reserves given extra preference?

	A.6
	No.
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	Q.7
	Are multifamily buildings eligible for Group 3, privately owned buildings and facilities?

	A.7
	Yes, existing multifamily buildings are eligible for Group 3. However, you must meet all the requirements in Section II.B.2, items A-D on pages 15 and 16.  These requirements include demonstration in a building with of a minimum of 100,000 square feet of conditioned space or 5 buildings with a minimum of 15,000 square feet of conditioned space each. Also, the demonstration in multifamily buildings must reduce the facility’s electricity use by at least 20 percent-see Section II.B.3. See also A.11.

	Q.8
	Would alternative refrigerant projects be eligible for this solicitation?

	A.8
	Yes, alternative refrigerants are eligible if they result in electricity savings. The demonstration must reduce a facility’s electricity use by at least 20 percent.  

	Q.9
	Would commercial refrigeration projects be eligible? 

	A.9
	Yes, commercial refrigeration projects are eligible if they result in electricity savings. The demonstration must reduce a facility’s electricity use by at least 20 percent. 

	Q.10
	Can an IOU be a prime?

	A.10
	Yes, electric IOUs in California can be prime grant recipients.

	Q.11
	Are multifamily buildings considered commercial and not residential buildings?

	A.11
	For the purposes of this solicitation, multifamily buildings are considered commercial buildings that fall under Group 3, Privately Owned Buildings and Facilities. We will clarify this with an addendum. 

	Q.12
	What do you mean by non-compressor technologies? Would absorption cooling be eligible? What about solar thermal?

	A.12
	Non-compressor technologies are cooling technologies that do not use compressors to provide cooling to buildings. Absorption cooling and solar thermal projects are eligible if the project results in direct electricity savings and does not offset only natural gas or another fossil fuel as a heat source. If the project has no electricity savings and only has non-electricity savings, then , it will not be eligible because all funded projects must benefit electric IOU ratepayers. See Sections I.E and II.B.4.  for more information. 

	Q.13
	Are energy generation projects eligible?

	A.13
	No, electric generation projects cannot be funded under this solicitation. However, electric generation technologies that are implemented along  with the energy efficient technologies can be funded with match funds as indicated in Section II.B.2., page 16, item A. The energy produced by such electric generation technologies cannot count towards the facility’s 20% electricity reduction required in Section II.B.3. 

	Q.14
	1. Are solar panels on government buildings eligible for funding?

	A.14
	No.  See response to question 13.

	Q.15
	2. Is eligibility for funding based on whether the projects are within one of the four groups, or is it based on technologies that are proposed for implementation?

	A.15
	To be eligible for funding, applications must meet all criteria under Section II, “Eligibility Requirements,” and Section IV E’s Screening Criteria. Applicants should focus on demonstrating pre-commercial energy efficiency technologies in one of the groups identified in Section II.B.2.  The technologies to be considered under this solicitation are also listed in Section II.B.2.

	Q.16
	Can you be a prime in Phase 1 and a sub in Phase 2?

	A.16
	No. Primes cannot be subcontractors on other teams. This applies to all phases. See section II.B.2, page 16, item (C). for more information.

	Q.17
	Can we submit multiple applications for the same technology but the technology is used in different groups?

	A.17
	Yes, but there is only one award per entity. The proposal with the highest score from any of the groups will be recommended for funding. See Application Manual section II.B.2.

	Q.18
	Do specific sites need to be identified?

	A.18
	Yes. Site locations must be identified on the Application (Attachment 1) and in the CEQA Compliance Form (Attachment 8).  Failure to identify site location(s) will result in disqualification of the application (see Stage One Application Screening, criteria 10 (Section IV.E.). In addition, a signed commitment letter from an authorized person from the demonstration site is required as indicated in Section III.D.11 and Screening Criteria, and as specified in Attachment 11.

	Q.19
	Will programmatic approaches to technology implementation be considered or are specific sites and/or technologies (not specs) required for this?

	A.19
	Programmatic approaches are not considered for this solicitation. The focus is pre-commercial technology demonstrations at the 4 different building sectors identified in the Application Manual, Section II.B.2. 

	Q.20
	Can high efficiency compressor based HVAC systems qualify as long as the project yields a minimum of 20% electric savings?

	A.20
	Yes, if the 20% electric savings pertain to the entire facility’s energy use, and not just HVAC energy use, and as long as the proposed project is otherwise eligible.

	Q.21
	Is the project described below eligible for this solicitation?  
We plan to provide an ecosystem of thought leadership and provide solutions that demonstrates and markets innovative, pre-commercial energy efficiency technologies in existing buildings, in the following ways:
1. Create a series of educational modules that tell the story to stakeholders of economic success employing electric vehicle fleets by major corporations and public entities.
2. Use data visualization and analytics to demonstrate the different applications, phases and outcomes of multiple stakeholder projects at different cycles to show the increase in technology effectiveness  and enable a comparison to current statistics
3. Connect business solutions as part of a matching program within our online ecosystem to companies, government agencies and others.


	A.21
	At this time, the Energy Commission cannot tell you whether or not your specific project is eligible because all details of your situation are not known. As a general matter, projects that are not per-commercial technology demonstrations (e.g., educational modules, promotional materials, or business networking services only) are not eligible. This solicitation is focused on technology demonstration. 

	Q.22
	a) Based on Section II.B.3., second bullet, can flexible load projects be deployed without having to meet the 20% kWh permanent reduction? b) Are there any requirements around demand-response as they pertain to the site?

	A.22
	a) No. The project must still meet the 20% annual kWh reduction at the facility even if it includes flexible load project elements.
b) If your project includes demand response, ideal focus areas are managing demand; shifting processes in response to demand response and price signals; and additional conservation in response to demand response signals. 

	Q.23
	a) Are projects involving natural gas efficiency eligible for this funding opportunity? 
b) Can technologies that are available but not yet widely adopted be proposed/used?

	A.23
	a) Natural gas savings can be an ancillary benefit, but projects will be evaluated on electric savings only. If the project only saves natural gas or another fossil fuel, it will not be eligible. Projects must show electricity savings and benefits to electric ratepayers. See Sections II.B.2 and II.B.4. 
b) Yes, technologies that are not yet widely deployed meet the definition of pre-commercial technologies in Section I.B.


	Q.24
	Is an application conformant if the base technology has under ten paid installed sites which have hard data proving 20% reduction in a limited California geographical area, and the application will include additional pre-commercial software technologies?

	A.24
	Yes, if the technology results in electricity reductions that meet the requirements of the solicitation (e.g., 20% annual electricity reductions for the facility).

	Q.25
	a) Is this GFO limited to existing buildings, or can new buildings be included?
b) Is the 20% savings to be achieved from each of the individual technology/solution/strategy, or is it total savings as measured on the facility meter? For example, if a new solution is proposed for the HVAC system, will the 20% savings requirement be only from the HVAC system or for the total building at the facility meter level?

	A.25
	a) This GFO is limited to existing buildings only. 
b) The 20% annual electricity savings applies to the entire facility. The technology or technologies must show 20% annual electricity savings when compared to the building’s current electricity use.

	Q.26
	a) Are the savings of 20% to be achieved on a peak day, over summer months, or over the entire year?
b)  Is the 20% savings target meant for temperature sensitive loads only or all of the combination of all the electric loads in a building?

	A.26
	a) The savings must be for the entire year.  This means 20% annual electricity (kWh) reduction for the facility. 
b) The savings is meant for all electric loads in a building.

	Q.27
	a) 20% kWh reduction over what period of time? 
b) How about peak shaving does that count towards the 20%?

	A.27
	a) The electric savings is on an annual basis. See response to question 25. 
b) The 20% annual savings applies toward the entire facility’s electricity (kWh) usage, regardless of when it occurs. See  Section II.B.3 Technical Merit and Need for more information.

	Q.28
	If one could achieve 11% efficiency by load reduction (e.g. getting users to switch to LED lighting), and (20%-11%=9) 9% "anytime" load reduction by load shedding / shifting, would that satisfy?  

	A.28
	Load reducing projects can be a component of the project, but at least 20% of energy savings must come from reduction in electricity consumption (kWh).  The 20% refers to annual electricity (kWh) reduction in a building. See Application Manual section II.B.3 reference to “…reducing on-site electricity use (kWh) by at least 20 percent….”

	Q.29
	Does installing a DC microgrid (via dc appliances) within the building count as it inherently increases efficiency (i.e. installing DC motors, DC equipment, etc.)?

	A.29
	For this solicitation installation of a DC microgrid is not an energy efficiency project and cannot be funded with EPIC funds.  However installation of pre-commercial DC appliances in building demonstration could be eligible if direct electricity savings to the building owner can be shown when compared to the typical AC appliances. This solicitation is focused on energy efficiency and not installation of DC microgirds in buildings.
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	Q.30
	3. How many extra points do we get for match funds?


	A.30
	If you provide more than the 25% minimum you have the opportunity to receive up to 10 additional points. Five points will be awarded based on the percentage of match funding that exceeds the minimum match funding amount. The other 5 points will be based on the level of commitment (cash in hand funds will be considered more favorably than other types). Please refer to Section IV.F., scoring criteria 8.

	Q.31
	Do funds spent prior to the EPIC grant count as match?

	A.31
	No, funds spent prior to the execution of the grant cannot be credited as match funding. See section I.F.2.

	Q.32
	Please verify that energy generation equipment can be used as match funding?

	A.32
	Yes, energy generation equipment can be used as match funding if implemented with energy efficient technologies. See also response to question 13. 

	Q.33
	Would funding from the IOU Local Government Partnership program be eligible as match?

	A.33
	Yes, if the funding is for pre-commercial energy efficiency technologies and not for commercially available technologies and so long as it meets the requirements of Application Manual section I.F.2.

	Q.34
	Can Proposition 39 funds be used as match?

	A.34
	Likely not, since Proposition 39 funds are used to fund commercially available technologies for schools. This solicitation funds pre-commercial technologies.

	Q.35
	If I already have a pre-existing project, can I use it as match?

	A.35
	No, any funds spent on pre-existing projects before approval and execution of the grant cannot be used towards match funding. See section I.F.2.

	Q.36
	How are the two types of points calculated for match funding above the 25%?  There is a clear formula for calculating the first 5 points.  Is the second 5 points available to any applicant that exceeds the 25% minimum, or is the second 5 points pro-rated based on how many of the first 5 points are scored?

	A.36
	As indicated in Section IV.F, criterion 8, match funds above the minimum 25 percent could earn up to 10 points as follows:
· Five points will be awarded based on the percentage of match funding that exceeds the minimum match funding amount relative to the EPIC funds requested. See Addendum 1 for more information.
· Five points will be awarded based on the level of commitment of the match funding and includes consideration for type of match funding, dollar value justification and funding replacement strategy. All of these must be stated in the letter of commitment from your match fund source –see Attachment 11 for more information. 
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	Q.37
	Please clarify the definition of pre-commercial technologies.

	A.37
	A pre-commercial technology is means a technology that has not reached commercial maturity or been deployed at scales sufficiently large and in conditions sufficiently reflective of anticipated actual operating environments to enable the appraisal of operational and performance characteristics, or of financial risks. For example, pre-commercial technologies can include technologies that have been demonstrated out of state/country or technologies that haven been tested in one sector but not in another. See Answer 24 for more information on pre-commercial technologies. See Section I.B of the solicitation manual for a complete definition.

	Q.38
	Please explain the royalty and confidentiality requirements of the program.

	A.38
	The royalty provisions are in the EPIC Terms and Conditions which can be found at: http://www.energy.ca.gov/contracts/pier.html#epicterms. Item 22, page 24 states: The recipient will pay the Energy Commission a royalty of one and one-half percent (1.5%) of the sales price of all sales for which the Recipient receives a payment, beginning on the Agreement’s effective date and extending for ten (10) years from the Agreement’s end date. 
The Energy Commission will not accept or retain applications that identify any portion as confidential. All documents will become public records. If confidential information is submitted, the application will be rejected per screening criteria 6, Section IV.E. See Section IV.D.3 of the grant manual for more information on confidentiality. 
As to deliverables in any agreement that may result from this solicitation, a bidder may request that data that is part of a product or deliverable in a proposed resultant agreement be kept confidential in Attachment C-1 of the proposed agreement. The burden is on the applicant to prove to the Energy Commission that a statutory exemption to the Public Records Act is applicable, and the Energy Commission’s legal office will make a determination as to whether or not the proposed data will be kept confidential.

	Q.39
	What solicitations are eligible for solar funding?

	A.39
	Information on Energy Commission funding opportunities can be found at: http://www.energy.ca.gov/contracts/.
Information on the Energy Commission’s renewable energy program can be found at: http://www.energy.ca.gov/renewables/renewable_links.html
Information on the California Solar Initiative can be found at:
http://www.gosolarcalifornia.ca.gov/about/csi.php    

	Q.40
	a) Please define “Deployed at Large Scale” further, is there a number of customers or installations that would rule a company out?  
b) Specifically, would approximately 3,000 units across about 30 trials constitute large scale?
c) Is integration, testing and analysis of results from integrating a particular emerging technology via API to So. Cal Edison’s Demand Response System a task that would be allowed as part of a grant proposal?

	A.40
	a) As used in the definition of pre-commercial technologies (Section I.B.), deployed at large scale means that there has been sufficient number of installations to allow the manufacturer to determine the operational, performance and financial characteristics of the technology. The number of customers or installations used to determine large scale is dependent on the technology, application and market size. 
b) Installation of approximately 3,000 units seems large but it depends on your market. You will need to explain in the Project Narrative (Attachment 4) the technical merits and needs of your project—see also Section II.B.3. 
c) It is likely that integration and testing of an emerging energy efficiency technology via API would be an allowed task. 
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	Q.41
	Does the project have to spend money in California?

	A.41
	No, there is no requirement for the grant funds to be spent in California. However, if more than 60 percent of funds are spent in California you can receive up to 15 points. Please see the scoring criteria IV.F. scoring criterion 6, EPIC Funds Spent in California in the grant solicitation manual for more information.

	Q.42
	Please explain the minimum and maximum amounts indicated in Section I.F. of the manual.

	A.42
	An applicant may request EPIC funding for each group between $2.5 million and $5 million. An applicant may not request below the minimum amount nor above the maximum amount.

	Q.43
	Can an end use customer get energy efficiency rebates/incentives when participating in this project? If yes, could these monies be used for cost share?

	A.43
	Energy efficiency rebates/incentives from utilities that target commercially available equipment or technologies cannot be used as match funds for this GFO because commercially available technologies are not eligible for this solicitation.  However, utility funds that focus specifically on pre-commercial technologies, such as IOU Emerging Technology Programs, can be used for match funding.

	Q.44
	Can applicants raise cash match via state/federal renewable loan programs?

	A.44
	A loan cannot be used as match if:  a) the loan is contingent and not already approved at the time of the application (see Section I.F.2), or b) the loan originates from the Energy Commission. 
If the loan can be used as match, only the loan payment amount that coincides with the grant term can be counted as the match amount. For example, if the annual payment for the loan is $5,000 and the grant term is 3 years, then only $15,000 can be included as match.

	Q.45
	Can we request an award that is lower than $2.5 M?

	A.45
	No.

	Q.46
	Since the minimum award is $2.5M and the max is $5M, does the Commission expect to award more than one award per group?

	A.46
	We may fund more than one per group depending on the funding requested from each proposal. We may also fund only one per group if the highest ranked proposal requests the maximum $5 million.
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